
Table of Contents

 
Agenda 2
June 4, 2015 and June 18, 2015 Minutes

DRAFT  June 4, 2015 MAPC Minutes 4
DRAFT June 18, 2015 MAPC Minutes 46

SUB2015-00020
MARINITA ADDITION -MAPC STAFF RPT -SUB2015
20 75

VAC2015-00026
VAC2015 26 -MAPC STAFF RPT 79

VAC2015-00027
VAC2015 27 -MAPC STAFF RPT 82

ZON2015-00026
ZON2015-00026 Staff Report 86

ZON2015-00027
ZON2015-00027 Staff Report 90

ZON2015-00029 and CUP2015-00015
ZON2015-00029 and CUP2015-00015 MAPC staf
report 95
Estancia Commercial CUP DP-337 for MAPC hearing 100

CON2015-00022
CON2015-00022 Staff Report and Site Plan 101

CON2015-00023
CON2015-00023 Staff Report and Site Plan 106

DER2015-00005
DER2015-00005 Amendment to the Wichita-Sedgwick
County Unified Zoning Code 110

DER2015-00001
DER2015-00001 Proposed Adoption of the Final Draft
Community Investments Plan 2015-2035 137

1



WICHITA-SEDGWICK COUNTY 
METROPOLITAN AREA PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA 

Thursday, July 23, 2015 

Page 1 of 2 

 
The regular meeting of the Wichita-Sedgwick County Metropolitan Area Planning Commission will be 
held on Thursday, July 23, 2015, beginning at 1:30 PM in the Planning Department Conference Room 
City Hall - 10th Floor, 455 N. Main Street, Wichita, Kansas. If you have any questions regarding the 
meeting or items on this agenda, please call the Wichita-Sedgwick County Metropolitan Area 
Planning Department at 316.268.4421. 

1. Approval of the prior MAPC meeting minutes: 
Meeting Date: June 4, 2015 and June 18, 2015 

2. CONSIDERATION OF SUBDIVISION COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS 
Items may be taken in one motion unless there are questions or comments. 
SUBDIVISION CASE DETAILS 

2-1. SUB2015-00020: One-Step Final Plat – MARINITA ADDITION, located west of 
127th Street East, South of Central.  

Committee Action: APPROVED 5-0 
Surveyor: K.E. Miller Engineering, P.A. 
Acreage: 4.83 
Total Lots: 8 

3. PUBLIC HEARING – VACATION ITEMS 
ADVERTISED TO BE HEARD NO EARLIER THAN 1:30 PM 
Items may be taken in one motion unless there are questions or comments.  
Complete legal descriptions are available for public inspection at the Metropolitan Area Planning Department – 
10th Floor, City Hall, 455 N. Main Street, Wichita, Kansas 

3-1. VAC2015-00026: City request to vacate the plattor's text to amend the uses 
permitted in a platted reserve on property, generally located mid-way between 
Greenwich Road and 127th Street East, south of Central Avenue, at the end of Herrington 
Circle.  

Committee Action: APPROVED 5-0 

3-2. VAC2015-00027: City request to vacate a portion of an easement dedicated by 
separate instrument on property, generally located midway between 42nd and 51st 
Streets North, west of Meridian Avenue, north of Keywest Street, at the west end of 
Portwest Circle.  

Committee Action: APPROVED 4-0-1  (D. Foster abstained) 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
ADVERTISED TO BE HEARD NO EARLIER THAN 1:30 PM 

4. Case No.: ZON2015-00026  
Request: City zone change request from SF-5 Single family Residential to TF-3 

Two family Residential.  
General Location: One-quarter mile west of Hoover Road on the south side of 37th Street 

North. 
Presenting Planner: Kathy Morgan 

2



Page 2 of 2 

5. Case No.: ZON2015-00027  
Request: City zone change request from PUD Planned Unit Development to GO 

General Office.  
General Location: Northeast of the intersection of East Douglas Avenue and North Rutan 

Avenue (3319 E. Victor Pl.) 
Presenting Planner: Bill Longnecker 

6. Case No.: ZON2015-00029 and CUP2015-00015  
Request: Creation of a new CUP Community Unit Plan to allow for organized 

development and a rezone from SF-20 Single-family Residential and LC 
Limited Commercial to LC Limited Commercial, GC General 
Commercial and SF-5 Single-family Residential.  

General Location: East of North Ridge Road and North of 37th Street North. 
Presenting Planner: Dale Miller 

7. Case No.: CON2015-00022  
Request: County Conditional Use permit for an accessory apartment.  
General Location: Southeast corner of 55th Street South and 116th Street East (5600 E. 116th 

St.) 
Presenting Planner: Bill Longnecker 

8. Case No.: CON2015-00023  
Request: City Conditional Use to permit a billboard within 300 feet of residential 

zoning.  
General Location: At the northwest corner of Bebe Avenue and Walker Street (1375 South 

Bebe Ave.). 
Presenting Planner: Derrick Slocum 

9. Case No.: DER2015-00005  
Request: Amendment to the Wichita Sedgwick County Unified Zoning Code 

sections dealing with zoning area of influence.  
General Location: County-Wide 
Presenting Planner: Dale Miller 
 

NON-PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS 

10. Case No.: DER2015-00001  
Request: Proposed Adoption of the Final Draft Community Investments Plan 2015-

2035 as the New Comprehensive Plan for Wichita-Sedgwick County  
General Location: County-wide 
Presenting Planner: Dave Barber 
 

11. Other Matters/Adjournment 

John L. Schlegel, Secretary 
Wichita-Sedgwick County Metropolitan Area Planning Commission 

3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



METROPOLITAN AREA PLANNING COMMISSION  AGENDA ITEM NO. 2-1 
         JULY 23, 2015 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
CASE NUMBER: SUB2015-00020 – MARINITA ADDITION   
   
OWNER/APPLICANT: Marinita LLC, 401 North Belmont, Wichita, KS 67208 
 
SURVEYOR/AGENT: K.E. Miller Engineering, 117 East Lewis, Wichita, KS 67202   

 
LOCATION: South of Central, West of 127th Street East (District II)  
 
SITE SIZE:   4.83 acres  
 
NUMBER OF LOTS 
 Residential:  8  
            Office:   
 Commercial:         
 Industrial:  __ 
 Total:   8 
 
MINIMUM LOT AREA: 9000 square feet    
 
CURRENT ZONING:  Single-Family Residential SF-5 
 
PROPOSED ZONING:        Same 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
VICINITY MAP 
 

 

75



SUB2015-00020 -- Plat of MARINITA ADDITION 
July 23, 2015 - Page 2 
 
NOTE:  This is a replat of a portion of Gilder’s Gardens Addition.   
 
STAFF COMMENTS:   
 
A. City of Wichita Public Works and Utilities Department requests the applicant extend water 

(distribution) to serve all lots, extend sewer (lateral) to Lots 5-8 and remove the existing water 
meter by City of Wichita. 

 
B. If improvements are guaranteed by petition(s), a notarized certificate listing the petition(s) 

shall be submitted to the Planning Department for recording. 
 
C. The plattor’s text should accurately reference the drainage and pedestrian easement. 

D. The standard language regarding vacation statutes need to reference “K.S.A. 12-512b, as 
amended”.  

E. City Stormwater Management has approved the drainage plan.  A portion of the project site is 
within the effective floodplain per FEMA Panel No. 20173C0379E.  The Base Flood Elevation 
(BFE) is approximately 1343.50.  Minimum building pads shall be at elevation 1345.50.  The 
project will be removed from the FEMA floodplain when new maps become effective in late 
2016. 

 
F. County Surveying advises the legal description needs corrected from "Gilder's Gardens 

Addition" to "Gilder's Gardens", Sedgwick County, Kansas. 
 
G. County Surveying advises on the title block "Gilder's Gardens Addition" needs changed to 

"Gilder's Gardens". 
 
H. County Surveying advises the 30-foot utility easement along the east line of Lots 4 and 5, 

Block A needs located east-west. 
 
I.  County Surveying advises the label "PC Lot 5, Gilder's Gardens" is not the PC of said Lot 5. 
 
J. County Surveying would like to be contacted regarding plat boundary, bearings and 

distances. 
 
K. County Surveying advises monuments will need to be set on Jackson Heights Court right-of -

way. 
 
L. The Owner's certificate should reference “Lots, Block, Street and Reserve”.  
 
M. The Applicant shall guarantee the paving of the proposed street, which includes the sidewalk.  
 
N. Provisions shall be made for ownership and maintenance of the proposed reserves.  A 

restrictive covenant shall be submitted regarding ownership and maintenance 
responsibilities.  

 
O. For those reserves being platted for drainage purposes, the required covenant that provides 

for ownership and maintenance of the reserves, shall grant to the appropriate governing body 
the authority to maintain the drainage reserves in the event the owner(s) fail to do so.  The 
covenant shall provide for the cost of such maintenance to be charged back to the owner(s) 
by the governing body. 

76



SUB2015-00020 -- Plat of MARINITA ADDITION 
July 23, 2015 - Page 3 
 
P. GIS has approved the plat’s street names.  
 
Q. The dedicated right-of-way which coincides with the west property lines of Lots 1 and 8 

should be denoted with a bold line.  A bold line is not needed for the current right-of-way.  A 
bold line is also needed for the Jackson Heights Cir right-of-way and the solid vertical line 
adjoining “58.00” deleted.    

 
R. “Wichita, Sedgwick County, Kansas” should be referenced in the plat title.  
 
S. The Applicant has platted a 20-foot building setback along Jackson Heights Ct which 

represents an adjustment of the Zoning Code standard of 25 feet for the Single-Family 
District (SF-5).  The Subdivision Regulations permit the setback provisions to be modified by 
the plat upon the approval of the Planning Commission. 

 
T. The Applicant is reminded that a platting binder is required with the final plat.  Approval of this 

plat will be subject to submittal of this binder and any relevant conditions found by such a 
review. 

 
U. City Environmental Health Division advises that any wells installed on the property for 

irrigation purposes will have to be properly permitted and inspected.  
 
V. County Surveying and MAPD requests review of a pdf prior to mylar submittal.  Send to 

tricia.robello@sedgwick.gov and nstrahl@wichita.gov. 
 
W. The applicant shall install or guarantee the installation of all utilities and facilities that are 

applicable and described in Article 8 of the MAPC Subdivision Regulations.  (Water service 
and fire hydrants required by Article 8 for fire protection shall be as per the direction and 
approval of the Chief of the Fire Department.) 

 
X. The Register of Deeds requires all names to be printed beneath the signatures on the plat 

and any associated documents.  
 
Y. Prior to development of the plat, the applicant is advised to meet with the United States 

Postal Service Growth Management Coordinator (Phone:  316-946-4556) in order to receive 
mail delivery without delay, avoid unnecessary expense and determine the type of delivery 
and the tentative mailbox locations. 

 
  Z. The applicant is advised that various State and Federal requirements (specifically but not 

limited to the Army Corps of Engineers, Kanopolis Project Office, Route 1, Box 317, Valley 
Center, KS 67147) for the control of soil and wind erosion and the protection of wetlands may 
impact how this site can be developed.  It is the applicant’s responsibility to contact all 
appropriate agencies to determine any such requirements. 

 
AA. The owner of the subdivision should note that any construction that results in earthwork 

activities that will disturb one acre or more of ground cover requires a Federal/State National 
Pollutant Discharge Elimination System Stormwater Discharge Permit from the Kansas 
Department of Health and Environment in Topeka.  Also, for projects located within the City 
of Wichita, erosion and sediment control devices must be used on ALL projects.  For projects 
outside of the City of Wichita, but within the Wichita metropolitan area, the owner should 
contact the appropriate governmental jurisdiction concerning erosion and sediment control 
device requirements. 

 

77



SUB2015-00020 -- Plat of MARINITA ADDITION 
July 23, 2015 - Page 4 
 

BB. Perimeter closure computations shall be submitted with the final plat tracing. 
 
CC. Any removal or relocation of existing equipment of utility companies will be at the applicant’s 

expense.    
  
DD. A compact disk (CD) should be provided, which will be used by the City and County GIS 

Departments, detailing the final plat in digital format in AutoCAD.  Please include the name of 
the plat on the disk.  If a disk is not provided, please send the information via e-mail to Kathy 
Wilson (e-mail address:  kwilson@wichita.gov).   

 

78



  AGENDA ITEM NO.    3-1 
METROPOLITAN AREA PLANNING COMMISSION July 23, 2015 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
CASE NUMBER: VAC2015-00026 - Request to vacate the plattor’s text to amend the uses allowed 

in a platted reserve  
    
OWNER/APPLICANT: Frontgate Homeowners Association, c/o Ben Hutton (owner) Baughman Co. PA, 

c/o Russ Ewy 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: Generally described as vacating the plattor’s text to amend the uses allowed in 

platted Reserve D, located between Lots 8 & 9, Block A, and at the south end of 
Harrington Circle, all in the Frontgate Addition, Wichita, Sedgwick County, 
Kansas  

 
LOCATION: Generally located mid-way between Greenwich Road and 127th Street East, south 

of Central Avenue, at the end of Herrington Circle  (WCC #II) 
 
REASON FOR REQUEST: To allow access onto Reserve D from Lots 8 & 9, Block A, Frontgate Addition  
  
CURRENT ZONING: The site and the abutting and adjacent east, west and north properties are zoned GO 

General Office. The abutting south property is zoned SF-5 Single-Family 
Residential.  

VICINITY MAP: 
 
 

 
 
 

 

79



VAC2015-00026 –Request to vacate the plattor’s text to amend the uses allowed in a platted reserve 
July 23, 2015 
Page 2 
 
 

 
 

 
The applicant is requesting the vacation of the plattor’s text to amend the uses allowed in the platted Reserve D, 
Frontgate Addition.  Per the plattor’s text Reserve D is reserved for open space, landscaping, drainage purposes, 
utilities confined to easements and walls confined to easements.  The vacation request will allow private driveways 
and/or access serving Lots 8 and 9, Block A, Frontgate Addition, while retaining those uses as described in the 
plattor’s text.  The reserve is located between Lots 8 and 9, along their south half, and at the south end of the 
Harrington Circle public street right-of-way.  Stormwater has an inlet and conduit located in a 20-foot wide, east-
west platted drainage and utility easement located in the reserve.  Per the plattor’s text the reserves are owned and 
maintained by an owners association; this will not change.  The Frontgate Homeowners Association has signed the 
vacation application.   The Frontgate Addition was recorded June 1, 2002. 
 
Based upon information available prior to the public hearing and reserving the right to make recommendations based 
on subsequent comments from City Public Works, Water & Sewer, Stormwater, Traffic, Fire, franchised utility 
representatives and other interested parties, Planning Staff has listed the following considerations (but not limited 
to) associated with the request to vacate the plattor’s text to amend the uses allowed in the described platted reserve. 
 

A. That after being duly and fully informed as to fully understand the true nature of this petition and the propriety 
of granting the same, the MAPC makes the following findings: 

 
1. That due and legal notice has been given by publication as required by law, in the Wichita Eagle, of 

notice of this vacation proceeding one time July 2, 2015, which was at least 20 days prior to this 
public hearing. 
 

2. That no private rights will be injured or endangered by vacating the plattor’s text to amend the uses 
allowed in the described platted reserve and that the public will suffer no loss or inconvenience 
thereby. 

 
3. In justice to the petitioner, the prayer of the petition ought to be granted. 

 
Conditions (but not limited to) associated with the request: 
 

(1) Vacate the plattor’s text to amend the uses allowed in Reserve D, Frontgate Addition.  The uses permitted 
are; open space, landscaping, drainage purposes, utilities confined to easements, walls confined to easements 
and private driveways/access serving Lots 8 and 9, Block A, Frontgate Addition, as approved by City Public 
Works, Water & Sewer, Stormwater, Traffic, Fire, and franchised utilities.   
 

(2) As needed provide letters from franchised utility representatives stating that there utilities are protected by 
the appropriate easements. These must be provided to Planning prior to the case going to the City Council 
for final action.             

 
(3) Provide utilities with any needed project plans for the relocation of utilities for review and approval.  

Relocation/reconstruction of all utilities made necessary by this vacation shall be to City Standards and shall 
be the responsibility and at the expense of the applicants.  Provide an approved project number to Planning 
prior to the case going to the City Council for final action.   

 

80



VAC2015-00026 –Request to vacate the plattor’s text to amend the uses allowed in a platted reserve 
July 23, 2015 
Page 3 
 
 

 
 

(4) All improvements shall be according to City Standards and at the applicants’ expense.   
 

(5) Per MAPC Policy Statement #7, all conditions are to be completed within one year of approval by the MAPC 
or the vacation request will be considered null and void.  All vacation requests are not complete until the 
Wichita City Council or the Sedgwick County Board of County Commissioners have taken final action on 
the request and the vacation order and all required documents have been provided to the City, County and/or 
franchised utilities and the necessary documents have been recorded with the Register of Deeds.  

 
SUBDIVISION COMMITTEE’S RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
The Subdivision Committee recommends approval subject to the following conditions: 

 
(1) Vacate the plattor’s text to amend the uses allowed in Reserve D, Frontgate Addition.  The uses permitted 

are; open space, landscaping, drainage purposes, utilities confined to easements, walls confined to easements 
and private driveways/access serving Lots 8 and 9, Block A, Frontgate Addition, as approved by City Public 
Works, Water & Sewer, Stormwater, Traffic, Fire, and franchised utilities.   
 

(2) As needed provide letters from franchised utility representatives stating that there utilities are protected by 
the appropriate easements. These must be provided to Planning prior to the case going to the City Council 
for final action.             

 
(3) Provide utilities with any needed project plans for the relocation of utilities for review and approval.  

Relocation/reconstruction of all utilities made necessary by this vacation shall be to City Standards and shall 
be the responsibility and at the expense of the applicants.  Provide an approved project number to Planning 
prior to the case going to the City Council for final action.   

 
(4) All improvements shall be according to City Standards and at the applicants’ expense.   

 
(5) Per MAPC Policy Statement #7, all conditions are to be completed within one year of approval by the MAPC 

or the vacation request will be considered null and void.  All vacation requests are not complete until the 
Wichita City Council or the Sedgwick County Board of County Commissioners have taken final action on 
the request and the vacation order and all required documents have been provided to the City, County and/or 
franchised utilities and the necessary documents have been recorded with the Register of Deeds.  

 
 
 

81



  
  AGENDA REPORT NO.   3-2 
METROPOLITAN AREA PLANNING COMMISSION July 23, 2015 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
CASE NUMBER: VAC2015-00027 - City request to vacate a portion of a public utility easement 

dedicated by separate instrument    
 
OWNER/AGENT: Raymond W Grundmeyer III (owner) Baughman Co. PA c/o Phil Meyer (agent) 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: Generally described as vacating approximately 224 feet of the west portion of the 

public utility easement dedicated by separate instrument (Film 1454, Page 63) 
located on Lot 5, Block 1, Moorings 5th Addition, Wichita, Sedgwick County, 
Kansas. 

 
LOCATION: Generally located midway between 42nd and 51st Streets North, west of Meridian 

Avenue, north of Keywest Street, at the west end of Portwest Circle (WCC #VI) 
  
REASON FOR REQUEST: Garage addition to the existing single-family residence    
 
CURRENT ZONING: The site and all abutting and adjacent properties are zoned SF-5 Single-Family 

Residential. 
VICINITY MAP: 
 

 
 
 
 

82



VAC2015-00027 – Request to vacate a portion of an easement dedicated by separate instrument    
June 23, 2015  
Page 2 
 
 

 
 

The applicant propose to vacate approximately 224 feet of the west portion of the public utility easement dedicated 
by separate instrument (Film 1454, Page 63) located on Lot 5, Block 1, Moorings 5th Addition.  There is a sewer line 
and a manhole in the easement.  The sewer line continues east, beyond the vacation area and is covered by the 
remainder of the subject easement as well as a platted 20-foot utility abutting the north side of the subject easement.  
The agent for the applicant needs to provide Public Works/Water and Sewer plans to make that sewer line a private 
service line or relocate it.  Westar has equipment in the easement that appears to serve the applicant. The applicant 
can maintain a portion as easement or can relocate at their own expense.  Heide Hancock, is the Subdivision 
Representative for Construction Services for this area and can be contacted at 261-6554.  Kansas Gas Service has a gas 
main in the portion of the subject easement.  The applicant is working with Kansas Gas to resolve this issue.  The 
Moorings 5th Addition was recorded with the Register of Deeds August 7, 1990.   
 
Based upon information available prior to the public hearing and reserving the right to make recommendations based 
on subsequent comments from City Traffic, Public Works/Water & Sewer/Stormwater, Fire, franchised utility 
representatives and other interested parties, Planning Staff has listed the following considerations (but not limited 
to) associated with the request to vacate the described public utility easement dedicated by separate instrument. 
 

A. That after being duly and fully informed as to fully understand the true nature of this petition and the propriety 
of granting the same, the MAPC makes the following findings: 

 
1. That due and legal notice has been given by publication as required by law, in the Wichita Eagle, of 

notice of this vacation proceeding one time July 2, 2015, which was at least 20 days prior to this 
public hearing. 
 

2. That no private rights will be injured or endangered by vacating the described public utility easement 
dedicated by separate instrument and that the public will suffer no loss or inconvenience thereby. 

 
3. In justice to the petitioner, the prayer of the petition ought to be granted. 

 
Conditions (but not limited to) associated with the request: 
 

(1) Abandonment or relocation/reconstruction of any/all utilities, made necessary by this vacation shall be to 
City Standards and shall be the responsibility and at the expense of the applicant.  As needed provide an 
approved private project plan number for the abandonment /relocation of public utilities.  All to be provided 
to the Planning prior to this case going to City Council for final action.    
 

(2) Approval from Westar and Kansas Gas Service is required in regards to relocation of their equipment or 
retaining a portion of the easement or providing an easement for their equipment.  All to be provided to the 
Planning prior to this case going to City Council for final action.   
 

(3) If the sewer line and manhole located in the vacated portion of the public utility easement dedicated by 
separate instrument is approved to become a private sewer line the applicant/property owner will take over 
ownership and maintenance of the sewer line and manhole.  As needed provide an approved private project 
plan number for the abandonment /relocation of public utilities.  To be provided to the Planning prior to this 
case going to City Council for final action.     
 

83



VAC2015-00027 – Request to vacate a portion of an easement dedicated by separate instrument    
June 23, 2015  
Page 3 
 
 

 
 

(4) Provide Planning with any needed easements, with original signatures, for relocated utilities, prior to this 
case going to City Council for final action and subsequent recording with the Vacation Order at the register 
of Deeds.  
 

(5) Provide Planning with a legal description of the vacated portion of the public utility easement dedicated by 
separate instrument on a Word document via E-mail that can be used on the Vacation Order.  This must be 
provided to the Planning Department prior to this case going to City Council for final action.  
 

(6) Per MAPC Policy Statement #7, all conditions are to be completed within one year of approval by the MAPC 
or the vacation request will be considered null and void.  All vacation requests are not complete until the 
Wichita City Council or the Sedgwick County Board of County Commissioners have taken final action on 
the request and the vacation order and all required documents have been provided to the City, County and/or 
franchised utilities and the necessary documents have been recorded with the Register of Deeds.  

 
 
SUBDIVISION COMMITTEE’S RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
The Subdivision Committee recommends approval subject to the following conditions: 
 

(1) Abandonment or relocation/reconstruction of any/all utilities, made necessary by this vacation shall be to 
City Standards and shall be the responsibility and at the expense of the applicant.  As needed provide an 
approved private project plan number for the abandonment /relocation of public utilities.  All to be provided 
to the Planning prior to this case going to City Council for final action.    
 

(2) Approval from Westar and Kansas Gas Service is required in regards to relocation of their equipment or 
retaining a portion of the easement or providing an easement for their equipment.  All to be provided to the 
Planning prior to this case going to City Council for final action.   
 

(3) If the sewer line and manhole located in the vacated portion of the public utility easement dedicated by 
separate instrument is approved to become a private sewer line the applicant/property owner will take over 
ownership and maintenance of the sewer line and manhole.  As needed provide an approved private project 
plan number for the abandonment /relocation of public utilities.  To be provided to the Planning prior to this 
case going to City Council for final action.     
 

(4) Provide Planning with any needed easements, with original signatures, for relocated utilities, prior to this 
case going to City Council for final action and subsequent recording with the Vacation Order at the register 
of Deeds.  
 

(5) Provide Planning with a legal description of the vacated portion of the public utility easement dedicated by 
separate instrument on a Word document via E-mail that can be used on the Vacation Order.  This must be 
provided to the Planning Department prior to this case going to City Council for final action.  
 

(6) Per MAPC Policy Statement #7, all conditions are to be completed within one year of approval by the MAPC 
or the vacation request will be considered null and void.  All vacation requests are not complete until the 
Wichita City Council or the Sedgwick County Board of County Commissioners have taken final action on 

84



VAC2015-00027 – Request to vacate a portion of an easement dedicated by separate instrument    
June 23, 2015  
Page 4 
 
 

 
 

the request and the vacation order and all required documents have been provided to the City, County and/or 
franchised utilities and the necessary documents have been recorded with the Register of Deeds.  

 

85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



 
AGENDA ITEM NO. _____   

STAFF REPORT 
              MAPC 7-23-2015 
               DAB V 8-10-2015 
 
 
 

CASE NUMBER:  ZON2015-00029 and CUP2015-00015   
 
APPLICANT/AGENT: Tier 1, LLC (Marv Schellenberg) / MKEC Engineering, Inc. (Brian 

Lindebak) 
 
REQUEST:    LC Limited Commercial, GC General Commercial and SF-5 Single-

Family Residential  
 
CURRENT ZONING: SF-20 Single-Family Residential and LC Limited Commercial  
 
SITE SIZE: Approximately 69.11 acres 
 
LOCATION: North of West 37th Street North and east of North Ridge Road 
 
PROPOSED USE: Uses permitted in the LC Limited Commercial and GC General zoning 

districts except for uses specifically listed below 

 
 

95



  
Metropolitan Area Planning Commission Page 2 

BACKGROUND:  The applicant is requesting Limited Commercial (LC), General Commercial (GC) 
and SF-5 Single-Family Residential (SF-5) zoning subject to the development standards contained in the 
proposed Valencia Commercial Community Unit Plan (CUP) DP-337.  The subject site is currently zoned 
LC and SF-20 Single-Family Residential (SF-20), and is located in Sedgwick County.  A request for 
annexation by the City of Wichita has been submitted and is expected to be completed prior to 
consideration by the governing body.  The application area is 69.11 acres shaped like an upside-down “L” 
that abuts the east side of North Ridge Road north of West 37th Street North, and the land abutting the 
south side of Highway K-96, one-half mile east of North Ridge Road.  It is proposed that all uses in the 
LC and GC district be permitted except for a list of specifically excepted uses, such as:  manufactured 
home, correctional placement residence, night club, animal kennel, sexually oriented business, rock 
crushing and vehicle and equipment sales outdoor.  The complete list of excepted uses can be found in the 
proposed CUP, General Provision 3.   
 
A total of 13 CUP parcels are proposed.  Parcels 1-10 abut the eastern side of North Ridge Road, south of 
the proposed eastward extension of West Village Circle.  Parcels 12 and 13 abut the south side of 
Highway K-96, north of the proposed extension of West Village Circle.  Parcel 14 is surrounded by 
Parcels 12 and 13 and contain an existing “wireless communications facility.”  Parcel 11 is located east of 
Parcels 8, 9 and 10 and south of Parcel 12, and does not have frontage along North Ridge Road or 
Highway K-96.  Parcel 11 has frontage on the proposed extension of West Village Circle and proposed 
Summitlawn Avenue.  Reserve C is located east Parcels 1-7 and 11, and is also located south of Parcels 
11 and 12.  All of Reserve C is proposed to be zoned SF-5, including the southern 540 feet of Reserve C 
is currently zoned LC.  Located to the east of the southern portion of Reserve C is a 132-foot by 540-foot 
rectangle that is currently zoned LC but is proposed to be down-zoned to SF-5, and is not to be included 
in the final boundary of the proposed CUP.  Reserves A and B are islands located within the proposed 
eastward extension of West Village Circle.  Proposed uses for all reserves, Parcels 1-11 and Parcel 13 are 
LC uses except for those uses specifically excepted by the CUP, as described in General Provision 3A.  
Proposed uses for Parcels 12 and 14 are GC uses except for those uses specifically excepted by the CUP, 
as described in General Provision 3B. 
 
The proposed CUP also requires:  

1) Architectural consistency between parcels.  
2) Landscaping per City ordinance. 
3) Lighting per City code with all parcels sharing similar or consistent parking lot lighting elements. 

Maximum height of light poles is 27 feet  except when located within 100 feet of residential 
zoning, which shall be15 feet. 

4) Rooftop mechanical equipment, trash receptacles, outdoor work areas and loading docks are to be 
screened from ground level view. 

5) Setbacks of 15 feet are shown along North Ridge Road for Parcels 1-7.  The setback for Parcel 
7’s North Ridge Road should be 35 feet to allow for adequate line of sight for traffic exiting 
Palmetto Street. 

6) Parking is to be per code. 
7) Signs are to be per code, except as specified differently by the CUP.  Initially the applicant 

proposed (General Provision 12B) to permit flashing, moving, portable, banner or pennant 
signage along Highway K-96 and at the northeast corner of North Ridge Road and West 37th 
Street North.  However, after discussion with staff the request has been withdrawn.  Small tenant 
monument signs are limited to150 square and a maximum height of 14 feet.  Three large 
development signs are proposed along Ridge Road and two along K-96.  Large development 
signs have a maximum height of 35 feet and a maximum sign area of 300 square feet.  Three off-
site signs are proposed, two along K-96 and one at the intersection of North Ridge Road and West 
37th Street. 

96



  
Metropolitan Area Planning Commission Page 3 

8) Access controls shall be determined at the time of platting.  Cross-lot circulation agreements are 
required at the time of platting to assure internal traffic between parcels.   

 
As noted above, the site is located at the southeast corner of Highway K-96, a divided four-lane freeway, 
and North Ridge Road, a four-lane arterial.  Land located to the north of the subject property, across 
Highway K-96 is zoned SF-20 or SF-5 and is farmland or single-family residential.  Land located to the 
east and south of the application area is zoned SF-20.  A large-lot single-family residence nearly 
surrounded by a berm and a private lake is located to the east.  South of Parcel 13 is a SF-20 zoned 2.012-
acre tract that contains a single-family residence, addressed as 4104 North Ridge Road that is not 
included in the subject application and is not included in the proposed plat noted below in the case history 
section.  Currently a private drive provides access from North Ridge Road to the residence and to the 
wireless communication facility.  If the subject application is approved, access to the residence would 
switch from a private drive to West Village Circle.  Other land located south and east of the application 
area is currently undeveloped and is currently zoned SF-20; however, it is owned by the current applicant 
and is proposed to be annexed.  Upon annexation the adjoining property will become zoned SF-5.  Land 
located to the south of West 37th Street  is zoned LC and GO General Office (GO) subject to CUP DP-
239, and developed with a convenience store, strip office center, church and assisted living.  Land to the 
west is zoned LC subject to three different CUP’s, and is vacant  or is developed with a bank or medical 
offices.   
 
CASE HISTORY:  A preliminary plat, The Valencia Addition (SUB2015-00022), has been submitted 
for consideration by the Subdivision Committee on July 16, 2015.  The proposed preliminary plat 
includes the property that is the subject of this application in addition to the remainder of the quarter-
section except for the 2.012-acre SF-20 zoned residence noted above.  With exception of the 2.012-acre 
tract, a request for annexation of the entire quarter-section has been requested.   
 
ADJACENT ZONING AND LAND USE: 
 
North: SF-20 and SF-5; farmland or single-family residential 
South: SF-20, LC and GO; single-family residence, vacant, convenience store, strip office center, church 
and assisted living  
East: SF-20; single-family residence, vacant 
West: LC; vacant, bank, medical offices 
 
PUBLIC SERVICES:  Usual municipal services are either available or can be extended to serve the site.  
At the time the property is platted specific utility and transportation needs will be identified, and 
guarantees for the provision of needed services can guaranteed.  The CUP drawing depicts 75-feet of half-
street right-of-way at the northeast corner of the intersection of North Ridge Road and West 37th Street 
North.  Sixty feet of half-street right-or-way is shown farther east on West 37th Street North. Sixty feet of 
half-street right-of-way is shown on the east side of North Ridge Road widening to 85 feet at the 
intersection with K-96.  
 
CONFORMANCE TO PLANS/POLICIES:  The 2030 Wichita Functional Land Use Guide map 
depicts the site as appropriate for “regional commercial” uses.  The regional commercial category 
encompasses major destination area containing concentrations of commercial, office and personal service 
uses that have predominately regional market areas and high volumes of retail traffic. 
   
RECOMMENDATION:  Based upon the information available at the time the staff report was prepared 
it is recommended that the request be approved subject to the following development standards: 
 

97



  
Metropolitan Area Planning Commission Page 4 

1) Approve the zone change and the Community Unit Plan DP-337 subject to the development 
standards contained therein, subject to platting within one year. 

2) At the time of platting the applicant shall guarantee the installation of all required improvements, 
including but not limited to, stormwater, sanitary sewer, water, access controls and traffic 
circulation. 

3) If the plat requires modification of CUP DP-337, CUP DP-337 shall be considered to be adjusted 
without further review so long as four copies of the revised CUP that are consistent with the 
approved plat are submitted to planning staff. 

4) Proof shall be provided to planning staff that notice of the development standards contained in 
CUP DP-37 has been filed on the application area with the register of deeds. 

5) The applicant shall submit four copies of the approved CUP to planning staff within 60 days after 
approval by the governing body, or the request shall be considered null and void.  

 
This recommendation is based on the following findings: 
 
1. The zoning, uses and character of the neighborhood:  The site is located at the southeast corner of 

Highway K-96, a divided four-lane freeway, and North Ridge Road, a four-lane arterial.  Land 
located to the north of the subject property, across Highway K-96 is zoned SF-20 or SF-5 and is 
farmland or single-family residential.  Land located to the east and south of the application area is 
zoned SF-20.  A large-lot single-family residence nearly surrounded by a berm and a private lake 
is located to the east.  South of Parcel 13 is a SF-20 zoned 2.012-acre tract that contains a single-
family residence, addressed as 4104 North Ridge Road that is not included in the subject 
application and is not included in the proposed plat noted below in the case history section.  
Currently a private drive provides access from North Ridge Road to the residence and to the 
wireless communication facility.  If the subject application is approved, access to the residence 
would switch from a private drive to West Village Circle.  Other land located south and east of 
the application area is currently undeveloped and is currently zoned SF-20; however, it is owned 
by the current applicant and is proposed to be annexed.  Upon annexation the adjoining property 
will become zoned SF-5.  Land located to the south of West 37th Street  is zoned LC and GO 
General Office (GO) subject to CUP DP-239, and developed with a convenience store, strip 
office center, church and assisted living.  Land to the west is zoned LC subject to three different 
CUP’s, and is vacant  or is developed with a bank or medical offices. 

 
2. The suitability of the subject property for the uses to which it has been restricted:  The majority of 

the property is currently zoned SF-20 that primarily permits single-family residential and a few 
civic and institutional uses, such as, church, school or park, by right.  A small portion 
(approximately 5 acres) located in the southwestern corner of the application area is zoned LC, 
which permits a wide range of residential, office and commercial uses, by right.  Given the site’s 
location at the intersection of a Highway K-96 and North Ridge Road the property’s SF-20 
zoning is not suitable.  Other property similarly situated is zoned LC.  

 
3. Extent to which removal of the restrictions will detrimentally affect nearby property:  The 

development standards associated with the CUP and the zoning code will minimize detrimental 
impacts of the proposed zone change.  Code requirements include solid screening, landscape 
buffers, maximum building heights below base zoning standards and maximum gross floor area 
limitations.  Platting will address street access, stormwater and the extension of utilities. 

 
4. Relative gain to the public health, safety and welfare as compared to the loss in value or the 

hardship imposed upon the applicant:  Approval of the request will add to the community’s 
inventory of commercially zoned land and provide additional shopping and personal service 

98



  
Metropolitan Area Planning Commission Page 5 

offerings for the larger neighborhood.  Denial would presumably represent a loss of economic 
opportunity to the applicant. 

 
5. Conformance of the requested change to the adopted or recognized Comprehensive Plan and 

policies:  The 2030 Wichita Functional Land Use Guide map depicts the site as appropriate for 
“regional commercial” uses.  The regional commercial category encompasses major destination 
area containing concentrations of commercial, office and personal service uses that have 
predominately regional market areas and high volumes of retail traffic. 

 
6. Impact of the proposed development on community facilities:  The development standards 

contained in the CUP and those required by platting will ensure that required community facilities 
are in place or are installed. 

99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138


	Agenda
	June 4, 2015 and June 18, 2015 Minutes
	DRAFT  June 4, 2015 MAPC Minutes
	DRAFT June 18, 2015 MAPC Minutes

	SUB2015-00020
	MARINITA ADDITION -MAPC STAFF RPT -SUB2015 20

	VAC2015-00026
	VAC2015 26 -MAPC STAFF RPT

	VAC2015-00027
	VAC2015 27 -MAPC STAFF RPT

	ZON2015-00026
	ZON2015-00026 Staff Report

	ZON2015-00027
	ZON2015-00027 Staff Report

	ZON2015-00029 and CUP2015-00015
	ZON2015-00029 and CUP2015-00015 MAPC staf report
	Estancia Commercial CUP DP-337 for MAPC hearing

	CON2015-00022
	CON2015-00022 Staff Report and Site Plan

	CON2015-00023
	CON2015-00023 Staff Report and Site Plan

	DER2015-00005
	DER2015-00005 Amendment to the Wichita-Sedgwick County Unified Zoning Code

	DER2015-00001
	DER2015-00001 Proposed Adoption of the Final Draft Community Investments Plan 2015-2035


